
Township of Frelinghuysen 
http://www.frelinghuysen-nj.us   
 

MINUTES OF MEETING OF NOVEMBER 10, 2008 
 

The regular meeting of the Frelinghuysen Township Zoning Board of Adjustment was 
held in the Municipal Building, 210 Route Main Street, Johnsonburg, New Jersey on 
Monday November 10, 2008 and was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Chairman Stracco. 
 
SUNSHINE LAW STATEMENT: 
 
Adequate notice of this meeting was provided by posting notice on the township bulletin 
board and by faxing notice to the Star Gazette and New Jersey Herald on Jan. 15, 2008 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
The following members were present: Kevin Bailey, Max Klein, Donald Soisson, 
Christopher Stracco, Russell Walters, Shannon Drylie and Chip Greene. Howard 
Jungkind was absent. 
 
MINUTES: 
 
The minutes of the meeting of October 20, 2008 are on hold with corrections until the 
meeting of December 8, 2008. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
The 995 Route 94 project’s attorney indicated to the Board that this application will be 
modified and new submissions will be submitted to accommodate the engineer’s report. 
The secretary was instructed to send Mr. Santini a confirming letter that the applicant 
waives the statutory period in connection with the extension. 
 
The continuation of Kids Camp (application #08-02) with attorney John Stolz appearing 
before the Board. 
 
Chairman Stracco announced that Kevin Bailey who did not attend the October meeting 
listened to the tape and was eligible to vote. Mr. Walters recused himself and stepped 
down. 
 
Mr. Kennedy who had previously been sworn and qualified went over Mr. Golden’s 
report and clarified the square footage. The core area on the existing property plans are 
22,764 square feet which includes the cabins and other structures. The additions 
consisting of the changing pavilion will be 1,182 square feet, farm house will be 2,267 
square feet, lodge expansion will be 2,833 square feet, arrival pavilion will be 6,754 
square feet and the dorminatory will be 6,353 square feet. Net additions will be 6, 609 
square feet. 
 



Township of Frelinghuysen 
http://www.frelinghuysen-nj.us   
 

With regard to the septic systems, there are three existing systems. The proposal is to 
close the three and add four septic systems which will be associated with the dorm, 
lodge and arrival pavilion, farmhouse and changing system. The flow will be 6500-7500 
gallons per day on the entire property and will be reviewed and approved by the Warren 
County Health Department and NJ Department of Environment Protection. 
 
Presented into evidence was Exhibit A6 consisting of Page 9 of 9 dated October 2, 
2008. 
 
Mr. Kennedy stated that if Kids Camp is classified as an educational facility there would 
be no COAH requirements. If this does not happen the requirement would be .84 units. 
 
The meeting was opened to the Board members and spoke were: 
 Kevin Bailey who asked if the old septic systems were being abandoned. He was 
answered yes according to DEP standards. 
 Kevin Bailey who asked what the path to the splash pad was going too made out 
of. He was answered that the pad will consist of stone with a hard surface. 
 Chip Greene who asked the size of the splash pad. He was advised that the size 
is 58x77. 
 Christopher Stracco who asked if QP would be included in the impervious 
surface and why the fourth well. He was answered that there would be QP included and 
the fourth well would be more convenient. A question on the fire abatement plan was 
answered that there will be a suction point in the northwest portion of the pond and will 
be tested by the fire company and will meet the current rate of flow for the standard on 
the stand pipe. 
 Donald Soisson who asked about the water usage. He was answered that the 
peak water usage would be during the summer. 
 Max Klein asked the number of children who will use the splash pad at one time. 
The answer will be given at a later date. He further stated that if this should be approved 
the resolution should state the limits and number of people during the off season 
 
The meeting was opened to the public to ask questions of Mr. Kennedy and spoke 
were: 
 Arnold Katterman who asked if the dorm required fire codes, has the critical map 
been looked at. 
 Dallas Sowards asked if the pond could be used for fire protection and what 
would happen if the pond was low. He was advised they would find another source of 
water. 
 Ursula Leo, an attorney representing  Mr.  & Mrs. Mickelson asked why the splash 
pad was not included in the square footage, why Kids Camp is not going with a non-
profit facility thru the COAH; and how was the flow rate calculated. 
 Vito DiCristina asked how many beds were in the current cabins and how many 
cabins are occupied during the summer. 
 Frank Desiderio asked if this was a summer camp. He was told that this should 
be brought up in the proceedings. 



Township of Frelinghuysen 
http://www.frelinghuysen-nj.us   
 

 
Ms. Michaela Murray Nolan gave an overview of the general operations from 1998 to 
the present. The camp in 1993 was opened for six to eight weeks with 200-250 children. 
The number of children increased to 375-400 in 1997 when they came before the Board 
of Adjustment seeking a variance to build a multi-use building. The Archdioceses, who 
owned the property at the time, used the camp during the off season from 1992 to 2005. 
 
The meeting was opened to the Board members for questions for Mrs. Murray Nolan 
and spoke were: 
 Max Klein who has a history of the camp and asked what the ratio of the 
counselors was to the students (1-10) what the number of children was from August-
May (40 a day with one bus). He also stated that the resolution has the Kids Camp as a 
summer camp and would like to put a cap on the number of students during the off 
season. 
 Christopher Stracco asked the time frame of the buses: Sept.10-May 30 there is 
one bus a day, 4 days a week from 9:30-3:00, June 20-August 15 4-8 buses a day, 5 
days a week from 9:30-3:00. They are shut down to clean up from May 31-June 19. 
 Shannon Drylie asked the number of staff that stays overnight. There are 4-5 that 
live there full time and 30-40 during the summer. 
 Kevin Bailey asked if a variance is given conditional upon the hours and 
improvements what guarantee would we have if the Kids Camp sold the property. 
 Christopher Stracco asked if any loudspeakers would be used during arrival and 
departure times, would there be any objections to limiting the number of counselors or 
the number of day campers between September and May. He also asked the number of 
acres being restricted and would the property be open for public use on weekends for 
other than hunting. 
 
The meeting was opened to the public for questions for Ms. Murray Nolan and spoke 
were: 
 Arnold Katterman who had a newspaper article that stated the property was 
closed from 1986-1993. 
 Dallas Sowards who asked if it was true that permission had been received from 
the Mayor for the rock concert held on the property. 
 Ms. Leo who asked when the full use of the property permitted according to Ms. 
Murray Nolan’s understanding (1998), what about 1993, and what allowed full usage in 
1998. 
 Vito DiCristina asked why Ms. Murray Nolan relied on the history of 1992 when 
the camp was closed in 1986 and not opened until 1993 when the Kids Camp took over. 
 Arnold Katterman asked if they considered moving the location of the splash pad 
and did she know that there was a band playing on July 5 th. 
 
Mr. Kennedy was qualified as a Professional Planner and discussed the previous uses 
which are a beneficial use for the education of children, the improvements are not 
changing the use that was previously improved in 1998 and the only physical changes 
would be the enhancement of the property along with the safety conditions. The 



Township of Frelinghuysen 
http://www.frelinghuysen-nj.us   
 

standards are that they are a pre-existing non-conforming use and are asking for an 
extension of that use. The impact to the zone change and the neigherhood are minimal 
as they are not asking for an expansion of those uses. The pool exists today and is 
being replaced with a splash pad. Noise testimony was addressed and it was 
determined that it would be no worse than what conditions exist today. Mr. Kennedy 
pointed out a section in the 1998 resolution that talks about over night campers for 
which section 7 limits the overnight guest to seven and campers on the weekend. Mr. 
Kennedy believed that the Board could grant approval under the pre-existing non-
conforming D2 standards and that the property would be more safer, more healthier, not 
trying to expand the use and fulfills the positive criteria. 
 
The discussion concluded at 10:00 and the meeting will continue on December 8, 2008 
with questioning of Mr. Kennedy by the public. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
The application (#08-04) for a variance for an additional dwelling on Block 104, Lot 12 
was deemed incomplete due to the Engineer’s recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
       Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       Brenda J. Kleber, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
  


